CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 2, 2014

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on September 2, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Tom Maxwell, Commissioner
Eron Linn, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Alternate
Stephen Springs, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Planning
Israel Roberts, Development Review Manager
Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner
Cindy Wilson, Administrative Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports, agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of August 19, 2014.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second
by Commissioner Linn. Motion passed 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and will be
enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless desired, in

which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration.

2. Revised Site and Landscape Plans — Richardson Business Center: A request for approval of
revised site and landscape plans to reflect the demolition of a 31,916-square foot office building
for the expansion of a parking lot. The property is located at 730 International Parkway and is
zoned I-M(1) Industrial. Applicant: Josh Jezek, Pacheco Koch, representing Jones, Land,
LaSalle Americas, Inc.

3. Revised Site and Landscape Plans — Courtesy Nissan: A request for approval of revised site
and landscape plans to reflect two expansions to the service building to accommodate a new
showroom and drop-off area. The property is located at 1777 N. Central Expressway and is
zoned C-M Commercial.  Applicant:  Josh Edge, Dynamic Engineering, representing
Commodore Partners, LTD.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

September 2, 2014

Motion: Vice Chairman Bright made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

4. Replat — Galatyn Park North Addition: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a replat of Lots 1B & 5, Block B of Galatyn Park North to abandon and dedicate
easements to accommodate the development of a 66,278-square foot shopping center. The lots,
totaling 14.83 acres, are located at the northeast corner of Renner Road and Plano Road.
Applicant: Matt Lucas, Kimley-Horn and Associates, representing BCS East Land Investments,
LP.

Mr. Shacklett detailed that the request is to replat two (2) lots, currently Lots 1B & 5, Block B
to Lots 1C & Lots 5A, Block B to accommodate the development; most notably on the western
lot, Lot 1C for the development of CityLine Market for which development plans were
approved in July 2014. The purpose of the replat is to abandon portions of existing easements
and to dedicate additional easements to accommaodate relocated utilities on two (2) existing lots.

With there being no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Matt Lucas, Kimley-Horn and Associates, 1270 Merit Drive, Dallas, Texas 75251, representing
BCS East Land Investment came forward and informed the Commission he had no formal
comments or presentation, but that he is available for questions.

With no statement from the applicants or statements in favor or in opposition, Chairman Hand
closed the public hearing.

Chairman Hand noted that this is standard procedure for a routine replat and staff has indicated
it meets all regulations.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve Item 3 as presented; second by
Chairman Frederick. Motion approved 7-0.

5. Zoning File 14-25 — Pollo Tropical: Consider and take necessary action on a request to revoke
Ordinance 2357-A, a Special Permit for a restaurant with drive-thru service and approval of a
new Special Permit for a restaurant with drive-through service. The property is located on the
north side of Campbell Road, west of Central Expressway and is currently zoned C-M
Commercial. Applicant: Joshua Millsap, representing Bury Partners, Inc.

Mr. Shacklett stated the Zoning File 14-25 is a request for a Special Permit for a restaurant with
drive-thru service and to revoke the current Ordinance Number 2357-A which is also a Special
Permit for a restaurant with drive-thru service. Mr. Shacklett noted that a Special Permit was
approved for a drive-thru restaurant (Ordinance Number 2357-A) on the site in 1983. The site
was most recently developed as a Grandy’s; however, the Grandy’s was demolished earlier this
year. Mr. Shacklett explained that the subject site is part of a larger 11.7-acre lot that consists of
a multi-tenant shopping center, a buffet restaurant, and drive-thru McDonald’s.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-09-02 Minutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

September 2, 2014

Although the Special Permit did not include an approved concept plan or elevations, which are
typically attached to current Special Permits, Mr. Shacklett explained it did contain conditions
related to a 53-foot setback from the east property line, an 11-foot wide storage lane to be
provided along the east side, and prohibition against free-standing signs. Mr. Shacklett added
that although a new drive-thru restaurant would be allowed, the legal description in Ordinance
Number 2357-A specified the location of the building on the lot, and the proposed restaurant is
being located west of where the former Grandy’s was located; therefore, a new Special Permit is
required.

Mr. Shacklett explained the applicant is requesting to revoke Ordinance 2357-A and approval of
a new Special Permit to accommodate the development of a new drive-thru restaurant named
Pollo Tropical; a restaurant that began in Miami and has recently constructed locations in the
D/FW area. Mr. Shacklett noted the proposed 3,641-square foot building provides drive-thru
service along with sit-down service, typical of most drive-thru restaurants.

Mr. Shacklett detailed the proposed development and additional conditions to include: building
size and materials, setbacks and landscape buffers, height, floor area ratio, landscaping
percentage, building orientation, number of parking spaces, and drive-thru stacking.

Mr. Shacklett explained the proposed concept plan provides the 53-foot setback and 11-foot
storage lane as required per the existing Special Permit. However, with the prohibition against
free-standing signs being removed, the applicant would be allowed to construct a monument or
pole sign in conformance with the Sign Regulations of the City of Richardson (Chapter 18 of
the Code of Ordinances). Mr. Shacklett added these types of signs are typical of signage located
on the north side of Campbell Road between US-75 and Collins Boulevard.

Mr. Shacklett mentioned as part of the development of Pollo Tropical, the applicant intends to
improve the portion of the shopping center lot in the following ways: increase/enhance
landscaping, increase parking and sidewalk replacement.

As of this date, no correspondence in favor or in opposition has been received.

Chairman Hand asked staff if there are any Codes or Ordinances that prohibit roof top units
(RTU) from being taller than the parapets.

Mr. Shacklett explained that City requirements for roof top screening state that screening
actually be as tall as the tallest element. The applicant has referenced this in their black and
white elevations.

Chairman Hand noted that he thinks seeing RTUs on top of a restaurant makes it look less than

desirable. Chairman Hand asked Mr. Shacklett to look at the east elevation where it appears
that an RTU is above the screening.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-09-02 Minutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

September 2, 2014

Mr. Shacklett identified the area in question and stated that the cornice returns part of the way
back to the roof top. Mr. Shacklett added that the intent would be for RTUs to be fully screened
to the top of the unit. Mr. Shacklett noted that the applicant is here and can address this topic.

Commissioner Frederick asked Mr. Shacklett about the overall traffic flow and pattern of this
lot; if one parks on the north side of the restaurant, in order to get to the entrance to the
restaurant, one would have to walk across the drive-thru lane.

Mr. Shacklett explained that the applicant envisions using close in parking for the restaurant and
that parking further out would be used for other businesses.

Commissioner Frederick stated she was glad to see that there appears to be plenty of parking.

Vice Chairman Bright questioned staff regarding the three (3) rectangular signs that are
identified on one of the exhibits as aluminum shutters. Vice Chairman Bright asked if the
Commission is approving one of the other.

Mr. Shacklett clarified what is being presented for approval is Exhibit C-3 that is a part of the
study packet requires aluminum shutters. What is being shown in Exhibit C-3 is noted as a
potential sign. The print on the shutters could reflect a type of signage. This would assume that
the signs will conform to all the City sign regulations. Mr. Shacklett also clarified that color
exhibits will not be part of the ordinance, however, Exhibits B and Exhibits C-1 through C-4
will be made part of the ordinance. The ordinance will reference multi-color, aluminum powder
coated metal shutters.

Mr. Chavez added that these shutters are not flat up against the building; they are angled away
from the building.

Commissioner Linn asked Mr. Shacklett if City regulations would allow electronic messaging
for the pole or monument sign for this property.

Mr. Shacklett responded that electronic messaging signs are allowed per Chapter 18 due to
recent changes.

Commissioner Linn asked about adding a condition to specifically exclude electronic
messaging.

Mr. Shacklett noted that this type issue is governed under a Sign Code and a Board that has
purview over signs. Mr. Shacklett continued that typically, signage is not a part of a Special
Permit placing conditions on signage.

Commissioner DePuy asked to have entry into the property pointed out and if there would be
any changes in curb cuts on Campbell Road.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-09-02 Minutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

September 2, 2014

Mr. Shacklett illustrated the entry into the property and stated that there would be no changes in
curb cuts on Campbell Road.

Commissioner Maxwell asked if the outside seating shown to be covered by a trellis-like
structure was shown on the elevation.

Mr. Shacklett confirmed that the trellis-like structure is not shown on the elevation.
With no more questions of staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mitch Keith, Fiesta Restaurant Group, 14800 Landmark Boulevard, Addison, Texas came
forward to present his case. Mr. Keith informed the Commission that he had with him a picture
of the site they will be opening tomorrow in Frisco that would show the patio in question. Pollo
Tropical, based out of Miami, Florida, is a sister brand to Taco Cabana, that has operated in
Texas for thirty-six (36) years. Pollo Tropical is a Caribbean Grilled Chicken restaurant which
makes it unlike most area restaurants. This is a family oriented restaurant and changes have
been made to architecture to convey that they are not a Tex-Mex restaurant. Mr. Keith
explained that they have made adjustments to ensure that RTUs are completely covered. The
patio is a free-standing, powder coated metal awning used in hopes that it will look and last
better than a wooden structure. Mr. Keith stated that their plan for a monument sign does not
have any type of digital messaging. Their signage will use back lighting only. Mr. Keith added
that their plan is to meet and exceed landscape requirements in the City of Richardson, using
palms, sego palms, and a lot of green, especially next to the building to convey their coastal
beach life theme.

Commissioner DePuy asked about the landscape area to the east which looks large.

Mr. Keith indicated the plan is to put in a large amount of palms, perennial flowers, and small
ground sego palms to fill out the area. Their goal is to deliver as much of a beach feel as they
possibly can.

Commissioner Springs asked if repair of the sidewalk in the front was considered over
replacement.

Mr. Keith responded that the existing sidewalk is growing up, turning and wobbly with a lot of
grass growing up. Mr. Keith stated that they determined that customers would appreciate better
sidewalks to walk on.

Josh Millsap, Bury, 5310 Harvest Hill Road, Suite 100, Dallas, Texas stated that as part of the
discussion with the City, the pavers along this section of the work area would be removed and
the sidewalk would be replaced with a concrete sidewalk to eliminate the issues with the pavers
in the future.

Chairman Hand asked for clarification that staff has asked the applicant to remove the pavers.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-09-02 Minutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

September 2, 2014

Mr. Shacklett confirmed this statement.
Mr. Chavez stated that concrete is standard for sidewalks.
Chairman Hand asked the applicant about their construction schedule.

Mr. Keith explained that when they have completed the zoning process, they target early spring
as a construction start with a one-hundred twenty (120) day build time.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-25
as presented and to revoke Ordinance 2357-A; second by Vice Chairman Bright. Motion
approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:49 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-09-02 Minutes.doc 6



